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Photo 111)  Village Cemetery, U106-043  Direction: NE 

 
Photo 112)  Village Cemetery  Direction: E 
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continued to contain businesses.  By the early 1990s the building was occupied by the New England 
Marionette Opera Theater.  The interior of the building was destroyed in a devastating fire on New 
Year's Day 1999.  Since then the building has been restored to largely maintain the original exterior 
appearance, and now houses the Mariposa Museum and World Culture Center.10   

With the completion of the new Unitarian meetinghouse in 1826 and the relocation of the town 
center around the confluence of the Contoocook River and Nubanusit Brook a new burial ground 
was needed closer to that area.  In 1833 land was set aside on the east side of the recently laid out 
Concord Street for the Village Cemetery (north of 61 Concord Street, Photos 111-112).  By 1926 
it contained 400 plots.11  A dry-laid rubble stone wall defines the street boundary and flanks a 
double-leaf cast-iron gate hung on dressed granite posts that provides access to an asphalt road that 
extends the depth of the cemetery.  Some of the wall's stones feature pre-1830 cape chisel splitting 
marks.  Fieldstone walls demarcate the other boundaries.  The cemetery contains a collection of 
common nineteenth- and early-twentieth-century headstone forms, including obelisks, in slate, 
marble, sandstone, or granite.  The cemetery also includes at least one crypt. 

Schools 
Only one school building from this period survives in the historic district, though the area once 
included a public school in the Depot Square area that was also constructed in this period, a two-
story brick building with wings built in 1844 and in use until 1887 (Morison and Smith 1954: 205-
206, 225).   In connection with a number of local reform efforts to improve educational opportunities 
in the town, a number of local citizens, led by Abiel Abbot, then minister of the Unitarian Church.  
Their efforts led to the construction of a private secondary school, the Peterborough Academy 
(now G.A.R. Hall) (PET0015, 40 Grove Street, Photos 195, 198), in 1837.  The brick gable-front 
building closely resembles in form, scale, and style the several churches built in the historic district 
around the same time.  The building is set back from and on a rise above the street.  The transitional 
Federal/Greek Revival styled 30' x 47' building was constructed at a cost of $1,452.97 (Morison and 
Smith 1954: 235-236).  The five-bay wide, six-bay deep brick one-story is augmented with a frame 
one-story rear addition, added in 1913 and designed by Bigelow and Wordsworth (Smith 1999:4).  A 
two-stage tower straddles the roof ridge.  Characteristic period detailing includes the elliptical fan 
above the entry, the elliptical fan in the closed front pediment, and the pinnacles on the tower.  The 
building was occupied as a private school until 1871 and the following year it became the public 
high school.  In 1889, with the completion of a new high school building, the local G.A.R. Post 
occupied the building, and later it became home to the local American Legion post, who continue to 
use the building.   

Commercial/Stores 
In larger urban American areas the emergence of commercial blocks as a purpose-built type began in 
the early nineteenth century.  In the first three-quarters of the nineteenth century in smaller New 
Hampshire towns such as Peterborough, however, stores tended to be inserted into existing 
structures or in buildings that combined commercial and residential functions.  A small number of 
the commercial blocks in Peterborough do date to this period, most of which have undergone 
modernizations and expansions over the years.  A distinctive example and the only example of stone 
construction is the Granite Block (44 Main Street/2-8 Grove Street, Photos 26-27, 30) built in 
1847 by Abiel Sawyer (1784-1870) with locally quarried granite.  Originally a two-and-a-half-story 
granite gable block (see historic photos), it had two additions in the 1870s to the south and east, 

                                                 
10 Ellen Derby, “Baptist Church Building—A Place Community,” http://www.waymarking.com/waymarks/WM1EN7_ 
Baptist_Church_Peterborough_NH (accessed October 2010). 
11 Eben W. Jones, “Gravestones in Village Cemetery, Peterborough, New Hampshire,” manuscript binder at Peterborough 
Historical Society. 


